CHILDREN'S SERVICES SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE EXTRAORDINARY
MEETING
Date:

Tuesday 25 January 2022

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Room THB-06, Town Hall, Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton Hill, London SW2 1RW*

*In line with legislation and continuing Covid-19 precautions, committee members will attend the meeting
in person at Lambeth Town Hall, with members of the public and press, visiting members and officers
invited to attend virtually. Instructions overleaf.
Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Marcia Cameron, Councillor Joe Corry-Roake, Councillor Nicole Griffiths, Councillor
Mohamed Jaser, Councillor Joshua Lindsey (Chair) and Councillor Jane Pickard

Co-optees
Simon Funnell, Baboucarr Jallow, Lynette Murphy-O'Dwyer and Frank Roberts

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
David Rose, Telephone: 020 7926 1037; Email: drose@lambeth.gov.uk

Published on: Monday 17 January 2022

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How to access the meeting
In line with legislation, Committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.
Reflecting current government guidance to help prevent the spread of Covid-19, members of the public,
visiting Members and officers are invited to attend virtually. If you wish to attend the meeting in person,
public access can be made available for limited numbers, but please contact Democratic Services
(details on the front sheet of the agenda or Democracy@lambeth.gov.uk) before the meeting so that
arrangements can be made.

For Members of the Public
If you want to watch the live broadcast, this meeting is available to view as a Microsoft Teams Live
Event. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking here will take you to the meeting page where you will
be prompted to download the app or watch on the web instead. Please follow the instructions to watch
on the web. On doing so, you can join our live event anonymously.
Members of the public wishing to make representations at this meeting must inform Democratic Services
(see front page for contact details) by 12pm on Monday 24 January 2022.

For Members of the Committee
In line with legislation, committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.

For elected Members of the Council
Councillors who are not members of the Committee but wish to attend the meeting must inform
Democratic Services by 12pm on Monday 24 January 2022. Upon doing so they will be invited to attend
the meeting virtually.

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office).
Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of
reasons including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, and you should aim to
arrive at least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 or the number on the front
page.

Directions to Lambeth Town Hall, London, SW2 1RW
Lambeth Town Hall is located at the southern end of Brixton Road and is a highly visible landmark. It can
be accessed via a number of bus routes and is a short walk from both Brixton Station and Brixton
Underground Station.

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING

Page
Nos.
1

Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct
(para. 4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the
Council, a committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they must
withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of the
consideration of that matter and must not participate in any vote on
that matter unless a dispensation has been obtained from the
Monitoring Officer.

2

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

1-8

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 07
December 2021 as a correct record of the proceedings.

3

Youth Strategy
(All wards)
Report Authorised by: Interim Director of Legal and Governance:
Andrew Pavlou
Contact for enquiries: Melissa McArthur, Lead Commissioner,
Children’s Commissioning and Community Safety, 020 7926 1174,
MMcarthur@lambeth.gov.uk
Papers to follow.

4

Child Friendly Lambeth
(All wards)
Report Authorised by: Merlin Joseph: Strategic Director for Children’s
Services
Contact for enquiries: Cath Millington, Child Friendly Lambeth and
Corporate Parenting Lead, 020 7926 1910, cmillington@lambeth.gov.uk

5

Update report on Ofsted
(All wards)
Report Authorised by: Merlin Joseph: Strategic Director for Children’s
Services

9 - 18

Contact for enquiries: Eibhlin McInerney, Head of Programme
Performance, Strategic Programmes, 020 7926 8963,
emcinerney@lambeth.gov.uk
Papers to follow

6

2021/22 Children's Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee Work
Programme
(All wards)
Report Authorised by: Interim Director of Legal and Governance:
Andrew Pavlou
Contact for enquiries: David Rose, Democratic Services, Legal
and Governance, 020 7926 1037, drose@lambeth.gov.uk

19 - 40

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

CHILDREN'S SERVICES SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES
Tuesday 7 December 2021 at 7.00 pm
Assembly Hall, Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton Hill, London, SW2 1RW

Members Present:

Councillor Liz Atkins (Substitute), Councillor Mary Atkins (Substitute),
Councillor Nicole Griffiths, Councillor Joshua Lindsey (Chair) and
Councillor Jane Pickard

Co-optees Present:

Baboucarr Jallow and Lynette Murphy-O'Dwyer

Apologies:

Councillor Marcia Cameron, Councillor Joe Corry-Roake and
Councillor Mohamed Jaser

1

Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
There were none.

2

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
The minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2021 were approved as a correct record of
proceedings.

3

Response to the Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse (IICSA): Lambeth
Council IICSA Action Plan
The Leader of the Council, Councillor Claire Holland, apologised to all victims and survivors,
and noted the failure to those whose care had been entrusted to the Council. It was also stated
that:
 The Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse’s (IICSA) report was published in July.
 The Council had transparently worked with IICSA and had set up a Redress Scheme for
survivors.
 Survivors’ bravery was noted and had been central to the establishment of an Inquiry and
to ensure Lambeth Council addressed its historical failures.
 Today’s Council was much different and had worked hard to address the IICSA report’s
concerns.
 Councillors needed to ask themselves tough questions, seek assurances of practice, meet
the Nolan principles of public office and fulfil their roles as corporate parents.
 The administration was committed to delivering the Action Plan and demonstrating
positive change, and to ensure the profound failures of political leadership did not happen
again.

Page 2


The Action Plan set out clear accountability for officers, provided robust oversight and
assurance, and was a vital step in this journey, but it was essential not to become
complacent.

The Cabinet Member for Children and Young People and Chair of Corporate Parenting Board,
Councillor Ed Davie, provided further comments on the Action Plan:
 He repeated the Council’s apologies to victims and survivors of abuse under Lambeth’s
care.
 He gave apologies from Merlin Joseph, Strategic Director of Children’s Services, who was
unable to attend the meeting due to illness.
 It was essential to acknowledge Lambeth’s troubled past, but important to recognise that
the Council was now different; with robust corporate and accountable leadership, and
Members were fully aware of their corporate parenting responsibilities.
 The Council’s internal framework was stronger, including on risk management, statutory
duties and corporate parenting, and with improved and regular scrutiny.
 The regulatory framework was more stringent and accountable, noting OFSTED’s positive
letter from its yearly visit published the previous week, and full inspections occurring every
three years.
 The legislative framework had also fundamentally changed since the events detailed in
the IICSA report, with the Council discharging duties of care in partnership with statutory
outside bodies.
 Lambeth had identified learning points for the Action Plan in advance of IICSA’s report;
with their recommendations and findings diligently translated into the Plan to ensure
positive change.
 The Action Plan recorded 50 actions, of which 10 had been fully completed; and included
items such as mandatory safeguarding and corporate parenting training, further
safeguards, review of Looked After Children’s (LAC) placements and strengthening
corporate parenting arrangements.
 All Lambeth staff and Members were corporate parents with responsibility for children’s
welfare.
 The Action Plan did not address all safeguarding mechanisms but responded to the IICSA
report.
 Whilst safeguarding was improved, the death of Arthur Labinjo-Hughes was a reminder to
remain vigilant. The Council would not be complacent and was committed to improving.
 The Action Plan was not just for Children’s Services but provided oversight and scrutiny
for children in care across the Council. It would be regularly reviewed and strengthened in
an iterative process that would integrate children’s input as underlined by Annex 4 of the
IICSA report.
 The Child Friendly Lambeth (UNICEF) Initiative would further put the voice of children at
the heart of Council processes do to help ensure that nothing like this happened again in
the borough.
Fiona Connolly, Executive Director: Adult Social Care; Jane Carroll, Interim Director Children’s
Social Care; and Fateha Salim, Assistant Director: Inquiry Legal Team, provided further
comment:
 Officers apologised to all victims and survivors and were deeply sorry for their experiences
and that they had not been believed, noting their immense courage and bravery.
 The Council would ensure children today and in the future did not suffer similar
experiences.
 Lambeth heard first-hand from survivors on the life-long impacts on them and their loved

Page 3
ones, noting in particular their request to assure that children were listened to and
protected.
The Sub-Committee next heard from Councillor Scott Ainslie, Green Party:
 The Plan needed to detail how Lambeth had changed and learnt from the past; measures
to tackle racism such as the Council’s Vernon Review into institutional racism; who were
the external services providing assurance; and provide an outcome to the review of the
vetting processes.
 It was requested which specific actions addressed racism or the Vernon Review.
 The Redress Scheme was not included in the Action Plan and queried why its review
would be delayed until 2022.
 The Council’s actions to date did not give a voice to survivors and the Green Party
believed that no steps should be taken with them being fully consulted. The Shirley Oaks
Survivors Organisation (SOSA) had been lauded for giving a voice to survivors, but their
funding had been withdrawn, they had not seen the Action Plan and were not present at
this meeting.
 Commissioning an independent visitor scheme should not wait until January 2024.
 It was queried what regular data would be provided to elected Members to undertake and
fulfil their safeguarding responsibilities to LAC, as assurance and regular evidence was
needed to monitor children’s placements, such as had failed in a 2016 case of a child
housed outside the borough.
In response to Members’ questions, the Cabinet Members and officers responded:
 Racism was documented in IICSA’s report as a specific feature of abuse and it was
absolutely correct to address it, which the Action Plan detailed.
 There were disproportionate numbers of Black African and Black Caribbean children in the
Council’s care, which was reflected in the ethnicity of frontline Lambeth staff.
 The Council was implementing the Vernon Review’s recommendations to tackle racism,
including through Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) training, and details could be
provided to Members.
 The Redress Scheme was out of scope of this item nor part of this response to IICSA but
was separately reported in September 2019 and would be included in final Summer 2022
report.
 External services were specified in the Action Plan to provide assurance and a whole
programme of visits would be documented. It was exampled that:
o the Local Government Association (LGA) were to be commissioned to provide peer
reviews;
o senior Members and officers from other local authorities could give external
observation;
o OFSTED was the statutory independent regulator, and had confirmed services as
‘very good’ from their recent visit, with a full inspection expected within the next 6-12
months;
o Bernardo’s had been commissioned to run an independent visitor scheme; and,
o Lambeth additionally had Independent Reviewing Officers.
 The Corporate Parenting Board regularly received updates and data on placements and
visits, which was available to councillors through the Pentana system, and enabled
accountability.
 A core theme from IICSA participants and throughout the Action Plan was that children’s
voices were paramount and those from current LAC were monitored to provide assurance.
 Every Member had access to corporate parenting training and almost all had completed

Page 4
































theirs. This training provided prompts to help identify abuse and offered ongoing support
and guidance.
Some local authorities in UNICEF’s Child Friendly City initiative had seen other services or
partners provide additional checks, such as British Gas engineers checking for signs of
abuse, which Lambeth was reviewing to adopt and reinforce current measures.
Lambeth was committed to mandatory corporate parenting training, alongside existing
courses on safeguarding, EDI, and Members’ roles and responsibilities; and was
reviewing a mechanism to do so, such as reporting completion to Full Council.
Training needed to be improved, including identifying indicators of abuse, and EDI training
covered all Equality Act protected characteristics but could be enhanced further.
The Member’s Code of Conduct was currently under review and input was welcomed.
The Action Plan would be under a constant, dynamic process of review.
There would be a new intake of councillors after 05 May 2022. Member induction was
often an overwhelming process, but measures were being reviewed to ensure a better
balance and that safeguarding training would be one of the first courses.
Consideration would be given to schools’ roles in supporting LAC and with advice from
Education colleagues, would amend the Action Plan accordingly.
The Social Workers in Schools pilot had helped liaison between schools and the Council
provided feedback to schools on the difficult domestic situations experienced by some
pupils.
Primary schools were encouraged to federate to better benefit from larger associations
and to mitigate smaller schools not having the same level of in-house provision.
Schools were required to have a dedicated safeguarding lead and all staff received
safeguarding training, with further access to the Lambeth Safeguarding Children
Partnership’s (LSCP) training.
All Lambeth LAC were overseen by the independent Virtual School Board.
Only one Lambeth foster carer awaited their DBS-check but had been risk assessed.
The Mockingbird Model or extended family model, whereby Lambeth foster homes were
linked with other foster homes, provided mutual support and created extra vigilance.
It was essential that social workers had manageable caseloads to spend quality time with
children and enable them to watch, listen and observe.
Some children did not always discuss matters of concern with their social workers and
needed other trusted adults in their life, such as mentors or independent visitors, to
provide stability.
Lambeth wanted to teach children how to protect themselves and was part of its corporate
parenting responsibility to ensure children’s safety and provide trusted adults for them.
Lambeth did not rely on children to report abuse, but through observation of their
behaviour, could identify when abuse was taking place, but it was important not to make
assumptions.
Anyone who wanted to be a councillor should understand the core safeguarding
responsibilities they would undertake as an elected representative.
The Child Friendly Lambeth Initiative would put children at the heart of everything the
Council did and further extended responsibility beyond the Children’s Services directorate.
UNICEF would aid training delivery to anyone identified by the Council, for example,
schools, officials, third parties; and would be delivered over at least the next three years.
Councillors excelled at holding each other to account either individually or through entities
such as Scrutiny, regardless of political party affiliation, but could be strengthened further.
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) were presented quarterly to Cabinet and available for
all.
There was a Forum specifically for disabled children to amplify their voice.

Page 5































The Council’s full range of mentoring schemes was not detailed in the Action Plan and
officers would review adding in specific references.
The trend to date was for more regulation and tightening of laws to install better practice
and safeguarding; and overall children were safer today than in the past.
A robust programme of auditing ensured all children’s records were up to date and
relevant.
Further review of recording children’s voices in casefiles was needed, noting that these
were more for young persons than for the authority.
OFSTED reviewed hundreds of files and reviewed the quality of case recording.
The Interim Director of Children’s Services reviewed data daily to appraise the discharging
of statutory duties, alongside other internal mechanisms, to give robust assurances of
safety.
Lambeth was doing all it could to recruit social workers and the workforce remained a key
priority. This included robust training offers and a current consultation on pay and
retention policy across Children’s and Adults’ Services, to ensure low caseloads.
Lambeth’s social workers largely stayed for many years, and it was noted that
temporary/locum local staff comprised some of the longest serving staff.
The Leader of the Council had personally ensured that Children’s Social Care teams
improved channels of assurance between Members and officers, to better hold each other
to account.
The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy would be updated to include specific reference to
safeguarding and to promote the public’s, partners’, and staff awareness.
The Plan would go to Full Council for approval to ensure that it was owned by the entire
Council.
The agenda pack, page 39, set out governance and oversight, noting the Plan would be
reported annually to Full Council, bi-annually to Cabinet, bi-annually to the Children’s
Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee, annually to Corporate Parenting Board and Children in
Care Council, quarterly to the Lambeth IICSA Board, six-weekly to the IICSA Oversight
Board, and quarterly at Cabinet Member Briefings; in an ongoing process of review.
Detailed action plans below the overarching Plan were reviewed by the IICSA Oversight
Board.
OFSTED rated around 40% of all UK local authorities’ services as ‘inadequate’ or
‘required improvement’, which suggested a national problem arising from underfunding.
Lambeth had prudently managed disproportionate funding cuts since 2010, prioritising
children and increasing investment – such as the 10% increase in 2022 to improve
complex safeguarding.
£500,000 had been allocated from existing resources to ensure the Plan was
implemented.
Provisions such as youth clubs were critical for many young people, especially LAC, and
councillors and officers needed to know of and support these partners.
Lambeth’s Complex Safeguarding Team would focus on the changing threats to children
and young people outside the Action Plan’s scope, with a Lambeth model under
development.
Private foster carers remained a concern, but the Council was aware and was reviewing.
Children placed outside London received the same services as those placed more locally;
all were allocated social workers, the same visiting arrangements, access to records, and
distance did not preclude Lambeth officer visitation.
All LAC placed in or near Lambeth had access to Lambeth schools and services.
Lambeth was reviewing its Fostering Strategy and was undertaking a recruitment drive.
Senior officers had to give reasoned authority for distant placements, which usually

Page 6























occurred due to children’s needs or the location of extended family.
All LAC had independent reviewing officers and a social worker as a statutory
requirement. Some wanted and had an independent visitor and/or mentor, but not all
chose to.
Children placed outside the borough remained the Council’s responsibility, but if
placement were in a children’s home, then the local authority and OFSTED were
responsible for that facility.
IICSA recommended that the Council publish its draft plan, as occurred on 29 November
2021, then formally submit its response before a deadline of 24 January 2022.
The Strategic Director of Children’s Services had commissioned an independent review of
borough placements to check quality and worked with Housing colleagues to reduce semiindependent placements. The Council intended to create council tenancies so care
leavers in semi-independent placements were safe and had their own home with pastoral
support.
External oversight was provided by the Department for Education (DfE), OFSTED, and the
LSCP which included partners such as the police. Increasing this oversight would see
diminishing returns due to the cost on administration to the detriment of frontline service
provision. Services would also be subject to a LGA peer review.
Lambeth produced a self-evaluation and self-assessment every year for OFSTED.
Essex and Islington were appointed as Lambeth’s improvement partners following
OFSTED’s 2015 inspection until 6-12 months from the next inspection, after which they
would either be renewed, replaced, or not required.
The IICSA report criticised all of Lambeth’s political culture, including trade unions. Trade
Unions were integral to success, but national bodies had responded positively and were in
dialogue.
Children’s welfare was a national issue and no relationship nor ideology was more
important.
OFSTED’s most recent visit reviewed front-door operations, including raising concern
about children. Services received around 80 per day, and OFSTED had quality accessed
their advice and referrals, noting only two or three from 300 were incorrect and Lambeth
had subsequently implemented recommendations.
Where concerns did not contain sufficient evidence to escalate to the next level of social
worker intervention, cases were signposted for further review and monitoring.
Online grooming and abuse was taken seriously but was outside the scope of the IICSA
response.
Permanent placement was the desired and usually best course of action, although some
returned to their birth or settled families, or were adopted; but most placements ended
with permanency.
Lambeth sought local authorities with children placed at distance to replicate Lambeth’s
offer.

In discussion, Members noted that it was essential to continue to:
 Hear, learn and act on issues of racism and the experience of Black African and Black
Caribbean children in care.
 Monitor the Action Plan, external review and third-party monitoring.
 Remain vigilant to future abuse and continue to listen to and work with survivors.
 Explore with survivors what they wanted Members and third parties to know and
remember of their experiences, particularly in relation to a proposed day of awareness.
 Ensure all elected Members and foster carers are DBS checked as early as possible.
 Provide peer-to-peer and other forms of mentoring for children.

Page 7









Transparently work with IICSA and proactively provide information on plans and
monitoring.
Ensure sufficient funding to undertake the IICSA Action Plan into the future.
Continue to monitor semi-independent placements.
Work with trade union partners and ensure that the current culture is maintained and
regularly reviewed.
Monitor and review low level referrals and ensure appropriate escalation.
Ensure continuation of training on corporate parenting responsibilities for non-members,
such as youth workers, teachers, and others in contact with children.
Provide and monitor uptake of Members’ and staff Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI)
training.
Monitor the provision of Lambeth Safeguarding Children Partnership (LSCP) training.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
1.
To ensure that the outcomes of the Patrick Vernon Review of Race and Diversity in
Lambeth Council (2020) are incorporated into the Action Plan.
2.
To ensure the provision of training for elected representatives, officials, and partners:
a.
includes noticing the signs of abuse;
b.
includes guidance to enable proactive assurance that local services are
safeguarding children
c.
occurs early on in induction or new starter processes;
d.
ensures the importance of a children-centred approach and voice of the child being
at the heart of all decision making;
e.
is monitored to ensure all necessary persons receive it; and,
f. that training encompasses all protected characteristics.
3.
To ensure and provide monitoring so children in care receive the same level of support,
including face-to-face contact, whether placed within or outside of the borough.
4.
For political parties to review their selection processes and that all candidates are briefed
and understand their corporate parenting and safeguarding responsibilities from the
outset.
5.
To explore school SENCOs having additional responsibilities for safeguarding children in
care.
6.
To review whether school Governors could have greater oversight of safeguarding and
accountability by schools.
7.
To ensure that the Action Plan’s language is appropriately precise and written in Plain
English; for example, explain what ‘organisational listening’ means.
8.
To monitor social workers’ workloads and cases, so that they are able to build
relationships with young people.
9.
To explore further forms of peer review and external scrutiny, such as from other local
authorities and the Local Government Association.
10. To explore ways of ensuring children are empowered to recognise and report abuse.
11. To review communications between social workers and schools, especially for those
children placed at a distance, and ensure effective monitoring.
12. To ensure provision of a 24/7 phone service for children to access to discuss and disclose
abuse.
13. To ensure that all councillors had full access to the Pentana (the council’s performance
monitoring system) which holds key performance indicator information.
Work Programme Recommendations
14. To add a review of the Redress Scheme in summer 2022 to the work programme.
15. To add modern forms of abuse outside the scope of the IICSA Action Plan, such as

Page 8
county lines, to the work programme for further review.

4

Work Programme
The Sub-Committee agreed to hold a separate work programming session.

The meeting ended at 9.12 pm
CHAIR
CHILDREN'S SERVICES SCRUTINY SUBCOMMITTEE
Date of Despatch: Tuesday 04 January 2022
Contact for Enquiries: David Rose
Tel: 020 7926 1037
E-mail: drose@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 25 JANUARY 2022
Report title: Child Friendly Lambeth Programme
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Children and Young People: Councillor Edward Davie
Report Authorised by: Merlin Joseph: Strategic Director for Children’s Services
Contact for enquiries: Cath Millington, Child Friendly Lambeth and Corporate Parenting Lead,
020 7926 1910, cmillington@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
With relatively high levels of poverty, violence, obesity, inactivity, ill-health, and air pollution affecting
many of Lambeth’s children and young people, the Council want to do more to ensure children and
young people growing up in our borough get a better start in life. As part of those efforts Lambeth has
applied to become a UNICEF Child Friendly Community. UNICEF UK has accepted our expression of
interest and in November 2021 Lambeth has begun its three-to-five-year journey to gain accreditation by:
a.
putting the rights of children and young people at the centre of decision-making.
b.
amplifying the voice of children and young people to have more say in decisions that affect them;
and,
c.
supporting more children and young people to access greater opportunities.
It is important to note that this is not solely a Lambeth Council or Children Service’s directorate initiative
– this must be a partnership between children and young people themselves, their families and
communities, the voluntary and community sector, business, and public services including the NHS,
police, fire, schools, armed forces, and anyone else concerned about the safety, health and development
of children and young people. We will ensure that children, young people, and their families are at the
heart of our planning, delivery and evaluation and that this programme underpins everything we do with
the rights of the child at the centre.

FINANCE SUMMARY
There is a £35,000 per annum fee payable to UNICEF over the three-year discovery and delivery
phases. The project will also incur costs around programme management, to deliver the six-month
consultation phase and support the partnership in our delivery phase of the programme. Funding has
been sourced from the Council’s Social Value Fund, has received growth funding and match funding
within the Council and Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) respectively. The Council will continue to
source further funding across the partnership throughout the programme. All funding aligned to the
programme is revenue-based.

Page 10
RECOMMENDATION
1.

To note the report and consider the Council’s and partner’s input into the programme.

Page 11
1.

CONTEXT

1.1. According to the United Nations Children’s Fund (UNICEF), local authorities and their partners play
a huge role in shaping children’s lives through the services and spaces they provide, whether
through universal, targeted or specialist services. Children’s experiences of the services and
provision that they come in to contact with have a significant impact on their lives. For children to
thrive – and truly feel safe, heard, cared for and able to flourish – then services and spaces should
be run and designed with children’s rights in mind.
1.2. The Child Friendly Cities (CFC) Initiative is UNICEF-led and supports local authorities and their
partners to realise the rights of children at local levels using the UN Convention on the Rights of
the Child as its foundation. CFCs can comprise a city, town, or community in which the voices,
needs, priorities and rights of children are an integral part of public policies, programmes and
decisions.
1.3. A CFC is a city, town, or community where children:
a.
are protected from exploitation, violence and abuse;
b.
have a good start in life and grow up healthy and cared for;
c.
have access to quality social services;
d.
experience quality, inclusive and participatory education and skills development;
e.
express their opinions and influence decisions that affect them;
f.
participate in family, cultural, community and social life;
g.
live in a safe, secure and clean environment with access to green spaces;
h.
meet friends and have places to play and enjoy themselves; and,
i.
have a fair chance in life regardless of their ethnic origin, religion, income, gender or ability
1.4.

The CFC Programme works with local authorities to put children’s rights into practice. The
programme aims to create cities and communities where all children have a meaningful say in, and
truly benefit from, the local decisions, services and spaces that shape their lives. While the primary
responsibility for ensuring that children’s rights are realised lies with local governments, other
stakeholders such as the public and private sectors, educational establishments, and the media, as
well as children themselves, have an important role to play in building child-friendly communities.

1.5.

It has been agreed that the Child Friendly Lambeth Programme will be a strategic programme for
the Council and the findings from the programme’s consultation (discovery phase) will underpin the
refresh of Lambeth’s Children and Young People’s Plan.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

As the Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse in Lambeth’s children’s homes from the 1930s
to the 1990s clearly shows, there have historically been children and young people that Lambeth’s
public services have failed to protect and nurture.

2.2

In the present day, far too many Lambeth children and young people are, among other challenges,
growing up in poverty, are victims of, or living in fear, of violent crime and are exposed to high
levels of air pollution. The Council also recognises that Lambeth’s black children and young people
are disproportionately affected by these disadvantages.

2.3

It is important that meaningful and measurable action to deliver improvements based on the CFC
criteria are undertaken. The table below makes some initial suggestions on how to do this and on
the need to establish baseline data and measure improvements. As you can see health partners are
vital in the delivery of some of these criteria especially the first one.

Page 12
CFC criteria

Have a good start in life
and grow up healthy and
cared for
Have access to quality
social services
Experience quality,
inclusive and
participatory education
and skills development

Express their opinions
and influence decisions
that affect them;
Participate in family,
cultural, community and
social life
Live in a safe, secure,
and clean environment
with access to green
spaces
Meet friends and have
places to play and enjoy
themselves
Have a fair chance in life
regardless of their ethnic
origin, religion, income,
gender, or ability
2.4

How we could deliver and measure this
- Commission and provide high quality midwifery, perinatal mental
health, health visiting, early health checks. Important to note
disproportionately poor outcomes for black women and children around
childbirth and take action to address this. The Health and Wellbeing
Board, CQC, Lambeth Together, commissioners and providers all have
a role in assessing this
- Ambition to get to Good and then Outstanding as assessed by Ofsted
- Maintain and increase 97% Good and Outstanding Ofsted rating for
early years and schools
- Ensure high quality Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND)
provision
- Address disproportionality poor outcomes for Black Caribbean and
Portuguese-speaking children and others
- Reduce permanent exclusions and other means of excluding children
with an ambition to eliminate it altogether
- Add new category to decision-making processes to ensure children are
involved and consulted
- Increase cultural, community and social opportunities for children and
young people by, for example, creating a scheme to give free tickets
and trips to theatres, sporting events, museums and galleries
- Create a new ‘Child Friendly’ Lambeth Special Planning Document to
ensure all that more children have access to decent housing, green,
play and community space and well-lit, active travel routes that design
out crime
- Invest in youth services, after school activities and other opportunities
- Collect comprehensive demographic data on health, educational and
other outcomes and take measures to address disproportionately poor
outcomes affecting children and young people with protected
characteristics

The Council will be asking people and organisations in Lambeth to contribute by, for example:
a.
providing funding, expertise and support to the Child Friendly Lambeth Initiative;
b.
undertaking the UNICEF Child Friendly training when offered;
c.
ensuring children and young people’s voices and opinions are heard and their rights
respected when making decisions that affect them;
d.
offering jobs, apprenticeships and training to children looked after, care leavers and other
Lambeth children and young people, especially those living in deprived circumstances;
e.
offering sporting, cultural, work and other experiences to children and young people
especially those who would find it harder to access them by other means;
f.
ensuring excellent education, play, health, social care, advice and policing services for
children and young people; and,
g.
creating genuinely affordable, quality housing, well-lit, accessible green, play and community
space well served by active travel routes.

Page 13
2.5

CFC recognition is only given to partners who have undergone UNICEF’s programme’s various
checks and balances to ensure that policies and practices are maintained to a high level to give
adequate support to those children that need it. After a minimum of three years, an independent
panel of experts on human rights, child wellbeing and public services – as well as local children
and young people – decide whether to recognise the city or community as a UNICEF CFC.
Recognition lasts for up to three years.

2.6

The programme consists of four main stages. Following on from our launch (November –
December 2021) this is now entering the ‘discovery phase’. This will be for at least six months
where the Council will work with children and young people, local communities, and services
across Lambeth to ascertain our priorities for the programme. There will then be a short ‘planning
phase’ to develop Lambeth’s programme plan for the next 3-5 years. It is anticipated for this to
become our Children and Young People’s Plan for Lambeth for the next three years. The
programme will culminate in an independent panel from UNICEF, including children and young
people, who will judge us to determine whether Lambeth can be recognised as an official child
friendly community.

2.7

Programme Management
Lambeth will have a small delivery team to co-ordinate the delivery of the programme with partners,
this includes input from our care experienced apprentices, and the Council will be looking to recruit
another apprentice to the programme.

2.8

Lambeth will work to secure an evaluation partner to support us in understanding the impact the
CFC programme has on our children and young people.

2.9

The programme delivery will have a multi-agency governance structure around it and utilise
Lambeth Children’s Partnership as a reference group. The Council will also be developing a
children and young people’s working group to support the programme made up of child friendly
ambassadors.

2.10 Task and finish groups will be established to coordinate and manage the operational delivery of
each element of the programme.
2.11 A detailed draft project plan has been developed alongside an engagement strategy.
2.12 UNICEF will work in partnership with Lambeth for the duration of the programme and provide
training on children’s rights across the partnership.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

There is a fee to UNICEF over the three-year discovery and delivery phases £35,000 per annum.
The project will also incur costs around programme management and to deliver the phases of the
programme. Funding has been sourced from the Social Value Fund, growth funding and match
funding within the Council and CCG. Further funding will be sourced across the partnership to
enhance the programme. As this is still in the planning phase of the programme, it is yet unclear
how much funding will be required across the whole programme, but the Council is confident to
have adequate funding until financial year 2023/24 to undertake our discovery and planning
stages. It is anticipated that the delivery phase of the action plan will be met mostly within existing
council and partner budgets.

Page 14
Funding Source
Social Value Fund
CCG Funding
Youth and Play
MTFS Growth funding
Total Funding

SeptMarch
21/22
54,000
80,000
80,000
0
214,000

Year 2
22/23

Year 3
23/24

Year 4
24/25

100,000
20,000
0
140,000
260,000

38,828
0
0
280,000
318,828

161,172
0
0
0
161,172

3.2

In kind funding will also be sought from the partnership for seconded officers and venues as well
as opportunities such as apprenticeships, jobs, training, enrichment and mentoring for children and
young people. Officers are also exploring external funding to support the programme evaluation.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

There are no specific legal issues arising from this report.

4.2

There were no further comments from Democratic Services.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

The discovery phase (first six months of the programme) has a clear focus on consultation, across
Lambeth’s children, young people, local communities, and partners to ascertain our priorities. This
is a mandatory phase within the UNICEF programme. Lambeth will choose six priority areas
aligned to the UNICEF programme badges following on from our consultation. The programme has
already been socialised widely and have buy in across the partnership. There will be engagement
with young people as champions to support the delivery of consultation and have developed a
consultation strategy with clear principles. The plan that is developed following the consultation
phase will be co-produced with children and young people, with Lambeth’s two care experienced
apprentices to support the delivery of the programme.

5.2

As part of our discovery/consultation phase the Council will be working with schools to develop
child friendly lesson plans to support our consultation. Young people will be trained in consultation
and group facilitation so they can lead sessions and listen to other children and young people.
Lambeth will employ a variety of consultation methods to hear a wide range of voices, including the
use of disposable cameras for our younger age group and those children in more complex special
educational needs and disabilities, social media, and online surveys, in addition to focus groups.
The Council will ensure the right support is in place to support children and young people to fully
participate where English is not their first language.

5.3

The Council has worked to build strong connections within the voluntary and community sectors to
engage those young people who may not traditionally engage in consultation and to explore
innovative ways to ensure they are involved, and their voices are heard. This includes
organisations who work specifically with black / black British communities and children and young
people who are unaccompanied asylum seekers to secure their involvement and ensure their
voices are central to our work. Lambeth Young Advisors are also eager to support our journey and
were part of developing and staring in our film. One of our key partners will be Black Thrive in this
work and The Black Prince Trust have been involved in making our child friendly Lambeth film.

5.4

Lambeth undertakes constant consultation and will pull together all the strands of consultation to
underpin findings and to ensure that work already undertaken is not duplicated.

Page 15
5.5

Lambeth’s Health and Wellbeing Board considered the report at its 8 July 2021 meeting.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

The main risks that impede on the successful delivery of this procurement and contract are:
Table 1 – Risk Register

Risk

Likelihood Impact Score

Wide range of children
and young people’s
voices not heard during
consultation

1

4

4

Lack of buy in across
the partnership

1

4

4

Control Measures
Engagement of wide range of
services to support the
consultation phase to reach out
into local communities
Young people will deliver
consultation events to gain wider
engagement
The programme has been
socialised across the partnership
for the last three months to
ensure buy in. The programme
will adopt a multi-agency
planning and delivery approach

Key
Likelihood
Impact

Very Likely = 4
Major = 8

Likely = 3
Serious = 4

Unlikely = 2
Significant = 2

Very Unlikely = 1
Minor = 1

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

An equalities impact assessment is currently being drawn up for the programme following on from
the confirmation from UNICEF that Lambeth has been accepted onto the programme. This will
then be submitted to the Equality Impact Assessment Panel.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

A focus within this programme will be around safer communities and safe spaces. This will link to
the Lambeth Made Safer Programme and influence programme direction. The consultation phase
of the programme will underpin wider work around community safety.

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

9.2

Environmental
A focus on the environment and climate change will be a key element of our consultation and
action plan and form part of the work with young people to understand their priorities around this
and the actions to take together.
Health
It is envisaged that healthy communities will form part of our priorities within the programme, and
the consultation and delivery plan should influence wider strategic and operation plans relating to
health.

Page 16

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

Corporate Parenting
Children looked after and care leavers will be integral to the consultation and delivery of the
programme. The Council will also be engaging foster carers as child friendly champions, will have
recruited to two care experienced apprenticeships who will also support the design and delivery of
the programme, and will also work closely with Visions of Success, our children in care council.
Staffing and accommodation
There is a small team to lead and coordinate the programme and support the delivery of each
phase. The team will work both at home and when allowed in the Civic Centre.
Responsible Procurement
Not applicable.
Good Quality Jobs with Fair Pay and Decent Working Conditions
The programme will involve training across the partnership for staff around children’s rights and
how to put them into practice in operational delivery but also in policy development and decisionmaking. Further employment opportunities for Lambeth’s children and young people will be
developed through working with partners.
Quality Apprenticeships, targeted Employment for Lambeth residents and Lambeth Priority Group
Lambeth’s two new care experienced apprentices will be supporting the development and delivery
of the programme. It is hoped to employ a further apprentice specifically for this programme and to
develop further apprenticeship opportunities and targeted employment opportunities across
Lambeth for residents.

9.8

Reduce Emissions: Lambeth Council has a commitment to being Zero Carbon by 2030
Our priorities are yet to be determined, but this area will form part of our consultation/discovery
phase.

9.9

Single Use Plastics
Our priorities are yet to be determined, but this area will form part of our consultation/discovery
phase.

Positive Health and Wellbeing
9.10 Both staff and young people who engage on this programme will develop new skills, with the
Council’s services being underpinned by the rights of the child.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 UNICEF are clear that the stages can be amended according to the needs of Lambeth. The table
below details the stages and indicative deadlines of the Programme:

Timeline
November –
January 2021
January – June
2022
July – August 2022

Phase
Launch
Discovery
Phase
Development
Phase

Actions
Launch of Lambeth’s Child Friendly Communities
programme across the partnership and within our local
communities
Wide consultation programme across Lambeth to
ascertain our priorities (badges) for the programme
Development of Lambeth’s Action plan to outline how to
achieve goals aligned to the chosen priorities

Page 17
2022 – 2024/26

Delivery Phase

2024/26

Recognition

Lambeth’s children, young people and partnership carry
out the agreed action plan
Lambeth receives accreditation and is recognised as a
UNICEF Child Friendly Community

Page 18
AUDIT TRAIL
Name and Position/Title
Councillor Edward Davie
Merlin Joseph, Strategic
Director
Rachel Harrison, Finance
Fateha Salim, Legal
Services
David Rose, Democratic
Services

Date Sent

Date
Received

Cabinet Member for
Children and Young
People

05.01.22

05.01.22

Children’s Services

23.12.21

05.01.22

Finance and Property

11.11.21

16.11.21

Legal and Governance

11.11.21

14.12.21

Legal and Governance

11.11.21

16.11.21

Lambeth Directorate

Comments in
paragraph:

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons

Background information

Appendices

November 2020
xx.xx.xx
No
No
N/A
N/A
Child Friendly Cities (CFC) Initiative
CFL Film
CFL Music video
Lambeth’s Children and Young People’s Plan
Health and Wellbeing Board 8 July 2021
N/A

Page 19

Agenda Item 6

CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 25 JANUARY 2022
Report title: 2021-22 Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee Work Programme
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Interim Director of Legal and Governance: Andrew Pavlou
Contact for enquiries: David Rose, Democratic Services Officer, 020 7926 1037,
drose@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
This report sets out the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee’s work programme as currently
drafted and provides a record of recommendations and actions arising from previous meetings
(Appendix 1).

FINANCE SUMMARY
There are no financial implications beyond the existing Scrutiny budget.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

To consider and approve the work programme as currently drafted (Appendix 1) and identify and
prioritise matters for future scrutiny of Children’s Services.

Page 20
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

The Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee (CSSSC) was established in April 2017 and its
Chair, Councillor Joshua Lindsey, also sits on Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) to ensure
coordination of work between the two bodies, eliminate potential duplication and feed in findings
between the two meetings, where relevant. This is the second meeting in the Children’s Services
Scrutiny Sub-Committee of the 2021-22 municipal year.

1.2

1.3

Terms of Reference
The Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee terms of reference are detailed in Lambeth
Council’s Constitution, page 61, as follows:
a.
The provision, planning and management of children and young people’s services –
including education, learning and schools; youth services; early years; education capital
estate; children’s social care; safeguarding children; children with learning disabilities;
children in care; troubled families and the Youth Offending Service (YOS).
Meetings and Membership
The 21 April 2021 AGM of the Full Council also agreed the Committee membership and meeting
dates for the 2021-22 municipal year.

1.4

Three meetings of the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee are scheduled in 2021-22 as
follow:
a.
30 June 2021;
b.
07 December 2021;
c.
25 January 2022 (extraordinary); and,
d.
15 March 2022.

1.5

The Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee membership for 2021-22 is:
a.
Councillor Joshua Lindsey (Chair)
b.
Councillor Marcia Cameron
c.
Councillor Joe Corry-Roake
d.
Councillor Nicole Griffiths
e.
Councillor Mohamed Jaser
f.
Councillor Jane Pickard
g.
Lynette Murphy-O’Dwyer (Southwark Roman Catholic Schools Commission, Church cooptee)
h.
Frank Roberts (Southwark Church of England Diocesan Board of Education, Church cooptee)
i.
Baboucarr Jallow (Parent Governor Representatives, co-optee)
j.
Simon Funnell (Parent Governor Representatives, co-optee)

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

The Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee may set its own agenda within the scope of its
terms of reference and this report serves to invite the Sub-Committee to consider its work
programme at each meeting. Although some flexibility needs to be retained to enable items to be
added at relatively short notice, planning the Committee’s work programme facilitates scrutiny of
those matters Members consider to be a priority, assists in the commissioning of reports and helps
ensure that matters are considered in a timely manner.

2.2

The Sub-Committee’s work programme and action monitoring table are attached at Appendix 1.
The work programme is updated following completion of any actions or recommendations arising

Page 21
or timetabling of new items. The work programme should be monitored at each meeting to ensure
that previous actions and requests have been completed in full.
2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

When considering which items to include in the work programme the following questions can
usefully be asked of each proposed topic:
a.
are statutory requirements being met effectively?
b.
are quality services being delivered?
c.
are any audits or external inspections due?
d.
are the specific needs of user groups being met?
e.
does the service compare well with neighbouring/other comparable authorities and against
national performance indicators?
f.
is the service an improving one?
g.
does the service know what changes are imminent or likely and are preparations being
made?
h.
is this a priority for the Council?
Borough Plan
Lambeth’s Borough Plan sets out the outcomes and objectives that the Council is trying to achieve;
these can be a useful tool for scrutiny members in their holding to account role; and, to support the
consideration, identification, and prioritisation of work programme items. The Borough Plan is
based around five big ambitions:
a.
enable sustainable growth and investment;
b.
increase community resilience;
c.
promote care and independence by reforming services;
d.
make Lambeth a place where people want to live, work and invest; and,
e.
be passionate about equality, strengthening diversity, and delivering inclusion.
External Inspections
Ofsted Inspection Lambeth Children’s Services
The findings from the Ofsted inspection of Lambeth’s Children’s Services (Inspection of services
for children in need of help and protection, children looked after and care leavers) was published
on 9 May 2018. Ofsted’s overall conclusion was that Children’s Services in Lambeth ‘requires
improvement to be good’ and were therefore no longer ‘inadequate’. However, the adoption
performance sub-judgement was that this service remains ‘inadequate’.
Ofsted made 12 recommendations for further progress, including:
a.
recruit enough adopters to meet the need of children in Lambeth;
b.
consider how to better engage young people who are gang affiliated, leaving custody, and
those who have more entrenched criminal behaviours, so that they achieve better outcomes;
c.
improve the frequency, quality and consistency of management oversight and supervision in
all teams;
d.
ensure that supervision is regular, reflective and challenging, and that managers record the
rationale for their case decisions;
e.
improve the quality of assessments so that the lived experiences of children are fully
understood and inform plans;
f.
develop an approach for assessing and responding to children detained in custody;
g.
improve oversight of children in care with substance misuse difficulties and ensure that
services and interventions are sufficient for them to receive the right help at the right time;
and,
h.
offer more practical and timely help to ensure that young people leaving care gain the skills
and attitudes they need to better engage in education, employment or training.

Page 22
2.7

2.8

2.9

Focused visit to Lambeth local authority children's services
There was a further focused visit to Lambeth local authority children’s services on 9 and 10 April
2019 to evaluate the quality-of-care planning for children in care and the timeliness of permanence
arrangement for children who are unable to live with their birth parents.
In addition to the findings as noted in the 8 May 2019 publication, Ofsted noted the following
improvements in this area of social work practice:
a.
early permanence planning;
b.
oversight of permanence planning by IROs and managers;
c.
the quality and timeliness of permanence planning meetings;
d.
the quality and timeliness of permanence planning meetings; and,
e.
performance data relating to permanence.
Youth Offending Service Inspection
The Youth Offending Service (YOS) has been subject to progress reporting to scrutiny on securing
improvement and responding to the findings of the full joint inspection of the service conducted by
Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Probation published in April 2019.

2.10 Arising from the annual Overview and Scrutiny Crime and Disorder Committee and the focus on
serious youth violence, OSC recommended that the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee
considers whether the educational/training programmes offered by the Youth Offending Services
are:
a.
sufficiently targeted;
b.
up to date; and,
c.
meeting clients’ needs.
2.11 This was subsequently discussed at the 18 June 2020 Sub-Committee (Appendix 2).
SEND Inspection
2.12 SEND inspection of local area services for children and young people with special educational
needs and/or disabilities was published in March 2020.
2.13 The local SEND offer and the findings and recommendations of the inspection was considered by
the Sub-Committee on 07 October 2020, which made the following recommendations:
a.
that the Council continue to support the work of the Fair Access Panel and should have an
ambition of zero exclusions;
b.
that more support be provided for families with English as an Additional Language, including
the recruitment of a diverse workforce within schools;
c.
that as far as possible, to ensure that children with SEND are not excluded, and that their
needs are met at an early stage;
d.
that exclusion data be harmonised across schools and checked for accuracy;
e.
that schools and families be encouraged to engage with support services such as CAMHS at
an early stage;
f.
that the Council and schools improve communications on exclusions with parents and young
people and give them a voice during the process, including access to independent advocacy;
g.
that the use of internal exclusions be monitored to ensure the provision of proper education
and to prevent children missing mainstream educational activities;
h.
that all communications relating to exclusion be made with parents and carers, rather than
solely via children; and,
i.
that support for the transition from primary to secondary school be strengthened.
Performance Information

Page 23
2.14 Information on performance across all matters within Lambeth’s Children’s Services is contained in
the Quarterly Budget and Performance report. This information may support development of the
Sub-Committee’s annual work plan and identify priority issues for future scrutiny.
Forward Plan
2.15 The Forward Plan lists all key decisions that the Council (including the Health and Wellbeing
Board) will take over the coming months. A key decision is defined as an executive decision which
will:
a.
Require an amendment to the Community Plan Outcomes Framework or require a
recommendation to Council to amend the Budget and Policy Framework; and/or,
b.
Result in the local authority incurring expenditure, raising income or making savings in
excess of £500,000; and/or,
c.
Have a significant community impact on:
i.
communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in Lambeth;
ii.
the wellbeing of the community or the quality of service provided to a significant
number of people living or working in an area; or,
iii.
communities of interest.
2.16 The Plan is therefore a useful tool for identifying forthcoming decisions where the committee could
add value.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report. The
work programme will be undertaken within the existing budget provision for Scrutiny within the
Democratic Services department within the Legal and Governance directorate.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

There are no legal implications, but advice on specific work programme items may be provided in
the future.

4.2

There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

All Members of the Council are entitled to suggest items for scrutiny work programmes in
accordance with the Council’s scrutiny procedure rules (Constitution Part 3, Section B, pages 61 –
77). Suggestions are also invited specifically from scrutiny members as part of their community
leadership role and from members of the public. The Council’s website includes a form for the
submission of suggestions and for public notice questions.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

None arising from this report.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

An Equalities Impact Assessment of the work programme has not been undertaken. Reports
commissioned by the Sub-Committee will be expected to address any equalities issues. Any

Page 24
recommendations arising from commissions will have equalities implications considered at the
drafting stage.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

None.

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
Not applicable.

9.2

Health
Not applicable.

9.3

Corporate Parenting
None as a result of this report, although the Sub-Committee will consider reports relating to the
Council’s Corporate Parenting responsibilities.

9.4

Staffing and accommodation
Not applicable.

9.5

Responsible Procurement
Not applicable.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 See Appendix 1.

Page 25
AUDIT TRAIL
Name and Position/Title
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director for
Strategic Finance
Javed Ansari, Legal
Services
Maria Burton, Democratic
Services

Date Sent

Date
Received

Finance and Performance

17.01.22

17.01.22

Legal and Governance

17.01.22

17.01.22

Legal and Governance

17.01.22

17.01.22

Lambeth Directorate

Comments in
paragraph:

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons

Background information

Appendices

N/A
12.01.22
17.01.22
No
No
N/A
N/A
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Full Council AGM 21.04.21
Lambeth Borough Plan
Forward Plan of Key Decisions
Lambeth Council Constitution
Ofsted inspection of services for children in
need of help and protection, children looked
after and care leavers, 9 May 2018
f. Ofsted focused visit to Lambeth local authority
children’s services, 8 May 2019 letter
g. Historic Ofsted activity reports and ratings
h. HMIP inspection of youth offending services in
Lambeth, 25 April 2019
i. Historic Justice Inspectorate reports (YOS)
j. Joint Local Area SEND Inspection of Lambeth,
9 March 2020
Appendix 1 – Children’s Services Scrutiny SubCommittee Work Programme 2021-22

This page is intentionally left blank

CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 2021-22 WORK PROGRAMME
NB: Visits should recommence from the 21 June 2021 once restrictions are lifted.

30 June 2021
Item/Topic

SEND and
Inclusion Strategy

Troubled Families
Programme

Drilldown into the design principles.
Strategy is heavily reliant cross-partnership and multi-level –
how are the different groups and partners working together?
How is the Priority Programme 4: Children with Special
Educational Needs and Disabilities within “Our Children and
Young People’s Plan” being implemented/what is progress?
Update on the High-Level Priority Actions.
Update on Lambeth Adoption with drilldown on regional
agency and how it is working.
Benchmarking on performance and how good are we
(progress since last Ofsted report and since joining of RAA)
Focus on: line-management processes within Lambeth and
how RAA checks or manages potentially differing practices
Case studies / and subsequent Improvement Plans
Relations and working arrangements between the four
London adoption agencies (‘Adopt London’ and not just Adopt
London South)
Progress with programme following extended funded for
20/21.
Plans, strategy and detail on family support going forward,
what happens at the end?
Plans, funding for similar/future national or local programmes.
Links and relevance to the Lambeth Community Early Help
Plan.
Policy development to drive improvement

Lead
Officer

Visits

Witnesses

Jo
SullivanLyons

 Service Users
 London
Innovation and
Improvement
Alliance (LIIA)

Alex
Kubeyinje

 Cllr Jon Davies
 Cllr Nanda
Manley-Browne
 Youth Council
 Service users
 Regional Lead
Officer and
Member

Brenda
McInerney
Kulsuma
Faiz

 User anon
 Case studies
 Funders attend
- MHCLG.

Background
information
Latest SEND
Inspection
LIIA Peer Review

Page 27

Impact of the
London-wide
Regional Adoption
Agency

Aims/Objectives and recommendations

Third annual
report

Take-up from families and issues getting cohort, potential
stigma of programme – comparison between LAs.
How can Scrutiny aid programme and provide oversight in
future?
Pre-meet with Lead Officers: week commencing 21.06.21
Draft deadline: 11 June 2021
Final deadline: 18 June 2021
Agenda publication date: 22 June 2021

CSSSC Member CSSSC Planning Session 12.08.21
To discuss the work programme with CSSSC members and update as necessary for the 07 December 2021 meeting.

Item/Topic

IICSA Action Plan

Aims/Objectives and recommendations
Review of action plan
Improve transparency of Lambeth Report response, arising
actions and related services/delivery.
Assurance of current Council reporting mechanisms and of
service delivery, including escalation of
complaints/whistleblowing (detailing process mapping).
Staff retention

Pre-meet with Lead Officers: 25.11.21
Draft deadline: 19 November 2021
Final deadline: 26 November 2021
Agenda publication date: 27 November 2021

Lead
Officer

Visits

Merlin
Joseph
Fiona
Connolly
Fateha
Salim

N/A

Witnesses
 David Goosey,
LSCP
Independent
scrutineer
 Dr Jon Bird,
NAPAC
 Trade Unions

Background
information

As detailed in
report.

Page 28

7 December 2021

Extraordinary 25 January 2022
Item/Topic

Child Friendly
Lambeth

1. Effective use of language to engage cohort and provide
lasting improved outcomes
2. Experience of users and community engagement
3. Aligned to support work to tackle VAWG, racism and
discrimination
4. Successful delivery (providing training and embedding
practices, community leadership, targeting young
people most at risk and building trust, working with
other statutory organisations and delivery partners, use
of wider collective impact model; inequality gap, input of
users into making and delivering strategy, ensuring safe
local environments)
5. Relation to and inter-working with Lambeth Made Safer
Strategy/other strategies
6. Development from previous Youth Strategies (issues
identified or solved or lasting (what worked and what
needs further improvement; and what has changed)
7. Young people’s mental health
8. Impacts arising from C-19 2019-21 and long-term
effects on youth.
9. Employability - Employment outcomes and
employability; 10-year outcomes and delivery on
priorities to be a framework for scrutiny activity
1. Family travel and air pollution
2. What are the issues facing children in the borough?
3. Mental health of children, changes to these and
challenges faced
4. Hackney model – appendix SPD (Bennett and Davie) –
to feed into child sensitive design to Youth and Play

Lead
Officer

Visits

Youth Centre
Melissa
McArthur

Cath
Millington

School
Youth
Council
meeting

School

Witnesses

 Black Thrive
Programme
Delivery
Director
 Cllr Hashi,
Deputy CM for
Youth
 Youth centre
workers
 Youth Council

 Mums for
Lungs
 Schools
(Jessop, Herne
Hill, and
Immanuel and

Background
information

Cabinet, 30.11.20
Lambeth Made Safer
Strategy

New School Streets
prog
Our children, Our
Future

Page 29

Youth Strategy

Aims/Objectives and recommendations

Strategy. Briefing note on considering as part of child
friendly approach to design.
5. Complex safeguarding – including county lines and
trafficking
6. Adoption of child friendly standards.
7. LYC engagement as appendix (Catherine Carpenter).

1. Ofsted progress report
2. Impact on staffing and mitigations

N/A
Eibhlin
McInerney

Health and
Wellbeing Board

Previous Ofsted
reports

Pre-meet with Lead Officers: 25 January 2022
Draft deadline: 04 January 2022
Final deadline: 12 January 2022
Agenda publication date: 17 January 2022

15 March 2022
Item/Topic
Budget
Safer Lambeth
Strategy

Aims/Objectives and recommendations
Review of Children’s Services budget proposals.


Assurance that the Strategy is working for young
people who are vulnerable to violence/violent
crime.

Lead
Officer
Merlin
Joseph
Trevor East

Visits

Witnesses

N/A

 N/A

Brixton Police
Station

 Cllr Jacqui Dyer

Background
information
Council and Cabinet
Budget reports
 OSC 21.03.21 report
 Crime and Disorder
Act 1998

Page 30

Update report on
Ofsted

Jane
Carroll

St Andrew
Primaries)
 Healthwatch
Lambeth
 Lambeth
Children’s
Partnership
 Local Child
psychologist
 Youth Council
 CPB – Cllr Ed
Davie (Chair)
 CPB – former
chairs (Cllr
Garden)
 DfE reps
 Ofsted report
writers





Fostering




Measures in place when lockdown restrictions lift
How CSSSC can play a greater role in
addressing concerns and mitigating impacts.
To include county lines and impact on most
vulnerable children.

Update – one year on
Include short briefing (appendix) on London-wide
adoption agency.

Hampshire
police

 Colin Wingrove,
Chief
Superintendent
 Victim Support
Youth Advocate
 Chair of
Lambeth Safer
Neighbourhood
Board

 Police and Justice Act
2007
 MET statistics
reports/analysis
 MoU between
Lambeth/MET/partners
Private: Minutes/agenda
from Safer Lambeth
Board

 TBC

Previous Fostering
reports

Fostering
home
Jane
Carroll

Lambeth
fostering
officers/team

IICSA
Recommendations
Update




Review progress of IICSA Recommendations.
How do we implement and track HR and
organisational/culture changes (retention,
recruitment, training metrics) – appendix.

Pre-meet with Lead Officers: TBA
Draft deadline: 22 February 2022
Final deadline: 02 March 2022
Agenda publication date: 07 March 2022

Issues for potential future scrutiny
The following matters have been identified by Members at previous meetings:
1. Children and accommodation; homelessness and young people;
2. Reducing adverse children’s experiences and neglect;

Merlin
Joseph

N/A

N/A

Cabinet report
09.11.21 CSSSC
documents

Page 31

Redress Scheme

3.
4.
5.
6.

Feeling safe and supported - children and young people in care/those needing support - continuity issues, not repeating their story;
Prevention and how services – council/services/stakeholders – work together;
Children’s and young persons’ mental health, to request report authors consider and include these across all reports.
Pupil Place Planning, Exclusion, and SEND items for June/July 2022

Post-Meeting Actions

30 June 2021
Report Title

1. To promote opportunities with employers and
voluntary organisations to aid pathways to
adulthood and identify employees’ support
needs.
2. To provide a measurable set of targets for the
Strategy’s Action Plan, including outcomes
for young people transitioning to adulthood,
aiding independent living and improved links
with employers and housing providers.
3. To ensure the Strategy had adequate and
early identification provisions, particularly for
early years; whilst detailing improvements of
families’ use of early years settings, the role
of heath visitors, and how Lambeth was to
approach these.
4. To review and monitor EHCPs, principally on
ongoing maintenance, accountability and
practical implementation.
5. That the committee members receive a
separate briefing on EHCPs with the
Assistant Director Education Strategy,
Access and Inclusion.

Lead

Abrilli Phillip
Director
Education and
Learning,
Jo SullivanLyons, AD
Education
Strategy

Action status

Deadline

In Cabinet report

Ongoing

Comprehensive, measurable targets are
already in the action plan. The contribution
of each partner to the evaluation of the
success of each target will be finalised by
the end of September.

Prior to
Cabinet
decision

In Cabinet report

Ongoing

This is a key priority within the draft SEND
and Inclusion strategy. Please refer to
Appendix A, priority number 6.

Prior to
Cabinet
decision

22.09.21 Visit

Prior to
Cabinet
decision

RAG
Status

Page 32

SEND and
Inclusion
Strategy

Outcome & Actions Arising

6. To share an initial summary of and later the
full Action Plan indicating success criteria and
targets with Members.
7. To ensure the voices of young people,
particularly SEND, and all communities,
particularly young black persons, were
continuously heard, represented and included
in the Action Plan.

Prior to
Cabinet
decision

In Cabinet report

Ongoing

8. To consider opportunities to share good
practice with neighbouring local authorities,
and detail cross-borough working with and
comparisons to, neighbouring boroughs’
strategies.

Lambeth’s neighbouring authorities have
written statements of action (WSOA)
(inadequate) from the Ofsted/ CQC
inspections and/ or overspends in the high
needs block of their DSGs requiring them to
submit deficit recovery plans to the DfE.
With reference to this, although they may
have some good practice it is leading to
huge deficits.
For example:
Merton: WSOA and deficit of £ 25m
Wandsworth: WSOA
Croydon: £ 23m deficit (not yet inspected
by Ofsted/ CQC)
Southwark: £21m deficit
Lambeth had a very successful Ofsted/
CQC inspection in 2020 and will have a
balanced budget position by 2023 (minimal
deficit and therefore no requirement for a
deficit recovery plan to the Department for
Education)

Prior to
Cabinet
decision

9. To consult with nursery managers and staff
on real needs and that nursery providers
were included in the Action Plan.

In Cabinet report

Ongoing

Page 33

Taken with above item

Completed

Prior to
Cabinet
decision

Completed – in Cabinet report

Prior to
Cabinet
decision

Completed

Prior to
Cabinet
decision

07.12.21
Alex
Kubeyinje,
Director CSC;
07.12.21
Shkelqim
Lumaa,
Service
Manager CSC
Nina SioLokam,
Agency
Advisory and
Permanency
Lead

07.12.21
Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Page 34

Impact of
the Londonwide
Regional
Adoption
Agency

10. To include lessons learnt during lockdown
and discuss with families and the most
vulnerable children impacted by the
pandemic; and reflect these in the Action
Plan.
11. To note the current funding challenges posed
by central government and demonstrate
strong outcomes for children with SEND in
the final decision report.
12. To identify the level of need and use this
information to lobby central Government on
increased SEND parameters and provide the
resources necessary to implement wider
SEND responsibilities.
1. To review the financial cost of courses and,
where possible, include the most wellregarded courses as part of the support
package for prospective adopters.
2. To review allowances for employers,
especially to support BAME adoptees, and, if
sufficient allowances were in place, to help
adoptive families minimise financial impacts.
3. To encourage employers to provide adequate
adoptive leave, such as mirroring maternity
leave arrangements.
4. To monitor the post-adoption programme,
noting the ongoing pressure on CAMHS.
5. To monitor Lambeth young people’s health
and wellbeing across the borough’s
partnerships as adoption numbers were low
in Lambeth and the time children remained in
care was still high.
6. To monitor performance and to regularly
report back to the Sub-Committee.

7. To continually review barriers to adoption,
recruitment strategies, and to ensure that
those seeking to adopt met and reflected the
needs of children.
8. To use outreach techniques (e.g., event
attendance) to reach specific audiences,
particularly underrepresented audiences.
9. To work across Children’s Services to
consider permanency at point of contact.

1. To provide detail on improved working
arrangements with partners.

07.12.21
07.12.21
We have relaunched the Early Help
Strategic Group which includes a wide
range of partners which meet
monthly. Currently the group are focussing
on developing the broader EH Partnership
wide strategy with a number of working
groups. One working group is focussing on
workforce and community which will, as
part of this remit look at undertaking a selfAlex
evaluation of the partnership using the Early
Kubeyinje,
Help Systems guide provided by MHCLG. A
Director CSC
second working group will focus on
Infrastructure & Digital and will be working
Brenda
on the development of several IT solutions
to improve working arrangements with
McInerney,
AD Early Help partners. This will include development of
the Mosaic Portal- which will allow external
partners to complete Early Help
Kulsuma Faiz,
Assessments which can then be uploaded
Co-ordinator
directly on to the Mosaic case management
system. A third working group is for schools
to develop their Early help offer and is led
by a local Head Teacher. There is also
ongoing work being undertaken across EH
locality teams with partners in the voluntary
sector, schools etc to support capacity
building.

Page 35

Supporting
Families
Programme

07.12.21

15.11.21

2. To provide the Sub-Committee with the
written response(s) to MHCLG questions
within 28 days.
3. To regularly monitor data maturity milestones
to improve reporting.

4. To improve data- and resource- sharing links
with providers.

Provided via email

28.07.21
Ongoing

15.11.21

Page 36

There is considerable work being done
through the Infrastructure and Digital
working group to ensure we continue to
strengthen our data monitoring for families
supported through this programme. We
have developed a PowerBI dashboard
which will allow us to report more effectively
on demographics for the families we work
with progress they have achieved. We hope
to share the data with partners in the next
Early Help Strategic group in December.
Details of child level reporting of
engagement and progress were provided
via email to provide an overview of the
progress.

5. To implement lessons learnt and focus on
partner working arrangement.

See note for bullet point 1.

15.11.21

6. To extend and strengthen Locality Panels
and ensure ward councillors were involved
and contacted to identify local groups.

We have recently changed the geographical
areas covered by the Early Help locality
teams the locality partnership meetings now
reflect the changes.
Community Early Help Partnership
meetings continue to take place across
each of the locality teams every 6 weeks
and are now chaired by Locality Managers.
An attached slide shows the wards covered
by each of the four localities.

15.11.21

7. To strengthen data monitoring and continue
to support families after Programme.

See note for bullet point 4.

15.11.21

Page 37

07 December 2021
Outcome & Actions Arising

IICSA Action
Plan

1. To ensure that the outcomes of the Patrick
Vernon Review of Race and Diversity in
Lambeth Council (2020) are incorporated into
the Action Plan.
2. To ensure the provision of training for elected
representatives, officials, and partners:
a. includes noticing the signs of abuse;
b. includes guidance to enable proactive
assurance that local services are
safeguarding children
c. occurs early on in induction or new starter
processes;
d. ensures the importance of a childrencentred approach and voice of the child
being at the heart of all decision making;
e. is monitored to ensure all necessary
persons receive it; and,
f. that training encompasses all protected
characteristics.
3. To ensure and provide monitoring so children
in care receive the same level of support,
including face-to-face contact, whether placed
within or outside of the borough.
4. For political parties to review their selection
processes and that all candidates are briefed
and understand their corporate parenting and
safeguarding responsibilities from the outset.
5. To explore school SENCOs having additional
responsibilities for safeguarding children in
care.

Lead

Action status

Deadline

Progress review at 15 March 2022 meeting.

15.03.22

Progress review at 15 March 2022 meeting.

15.03.22

Progress review at 15 March 2022 meeting.

15.03.22

Progress review at 15 March 2022 meeting.

15.03.22

Progress review at 15 March 2022 meeting.

15.03.22

RAG
Status

Merlin
Joseph,
Strategic
Director for
Children’s
Services
Fiona
Connolly,
Executive
Director for
Adult Social
Care
Jane Carroll,
Interim
Director for
Children’s
Social Care
Fateha Salim,
Inquiry Legal
Team

Page 38

Report Title

Democratic
Services
Democratic
Services

Progress review at 15 March 2022 meeting.

15.03.22

Progress review at 15 March 2022 meeting.

15.03.22

Progress review at 15 March 2022 meeting.

15.03.22

Progress review at 15 March 2022 meeting.

15.03.22

Progress review at 15 March 2022 meeting.

15.03.22

Progress review at 15 March 2022 meeting.

15.03.22

Progress review at 15 March 2022 meeting.

15.03.22

Progress review at 15 March 2022 meeting.

15.03.22
June
2022

To be added to the Work Programme for
2022-23.

June
2022

Page 39

6. To review whether school Governors could
have greater oversight of safeguarding and
accountability by schools.
7. To ensure that the Action Plan’s language is
appropriately precise and written in Plain
English; for example, explain what
‘organisational listening’ means.
8. To monitor social workers’ workloads and
cases, so that they are able to build
relationships with young people.
9. To explore further forms of peer review and
external scrutiny, such as from other local
authorities and the Local Government
Association.
10.To explore ways of ensuring children are
empowered to recognise and report abuse.
11.To review communications between social
workers and schools, especially for those
children placed at a distance, and ensure
effective monitoring.
12.To ensure provision of a 24/7 phone service
for children to access to discuss and disclose
abuse.
13.To ensure that all councillors had full access to
the Pentana (the council’s performance
monitoring system) which holds key
performance indicator information.
14.To add a review of the Redress Scheme in
summer 2022 to the work programme.
15.To add modern forms of abuse outside the
scope of the IICSA Action Plan, such as
county lines, to the work programme for further
review.

25 January 2022
Report Title
Youth
Strategy
Child
Friendly
Lambeth
Update
report on
Ofsted

Outcome & Actions Arising

Lead

Action status

Deadline

RAG
Status

Action status

Deadline

RAG
Status

1.
2.
1.
2.
1.
2.

Report Title
Fostering
Budget
Safer
Lambeth
Strategy
IICSA
Update

Outcome & Actions Arising
1.
2.
1.
2.
1.
2.
1.
2.

Lead

Page 40

15 March 2022

